City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPU-165
Addendum 

Updated: 1/13/12

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SPU-165, titled “Budgeting, Planning & Forecasting Software Implementation Services”   released on 12/19/11.  The due date and time for responses remains as 2/10/12 at 4:30 (Pacific) This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders/proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid/proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	12/20/11
	12/20/11
	We would like to respond to this RFP, but question why the RFP is limited to only IBM Cognos TM1application providers?   Based on our initial reading of the RFP, none of the objectives or Anticipated Areas of Improvements (Section 2 – Objectives) requires Cognos.  

Will the City consider Budgeting Systems that provides more functionality than Cognos at a lower cost? 


	SPU has made a strategic decision and significant investment to consolidate its business intelligence, reporting and budgeting on the IBM Cognos application suite.

No


	

	2
	12/21/11
	12/21/11
	We are having trouble extracting Attachment #3:  Just the Facts (for SPU).   Could you please send me just this file?


	RFP, Attachment #3 embedded below.

[image: image1.emf]SPU_Facts.pdf


	

	3
	1/04/12
	1/11/04
	What was the process used to create the Business Requirements Document?


	The process consisted of the IT business analyst working with the business subject matter experts to map out the current and preferred-state business processes used to develop the annual budget and other financial deliverables.  This process took the form of many interviews with finance staff and business staff outside finance to map out current and future processes, and to understand the interfaces between existing systems (e.g. where data comes from and how data gets put into system).  While there are quite a few relational database table entity diagrams in the BRD, their real purpose is to identify the relationship between the various business entities that play a role in the budgeting and financial processes.  These tables do not mean to imply that is how SPU wants or needs its’ system built.  They are there to help Vendors understand the business relationships that exist as well as the level of detail SPU desires in some business functions (for example, entering multiple inflation factors for different financial accounts).  It took approximately five months to produce the BRD.

	

	4
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	How much of the Business Requirements were developed taking TM1 functionality into account?


	Business requirements were developed in a solution neutral manner.  We did not take TM1 functionality into account when developing our requirements.  The RFP was structured to solicit Vendor input thru a Fit and Gap analysis to answer this exact question.  


	

	5
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	Do we assume that work is done as laid out as in Business Requirements Document or do we take an approach to implement the system taking into account how TM1 is designed to work and other “best practices”?


	SPU is looking for proposers to describe TM1 best practices.  SPU doesn’t want to create a TM1 implementation that is so heavily customized that it would be difficult to maintain later.  SPU is willing to tailor some business processes and functionality to align more with TM1 out of the box functionality; however, having little in-house TM1 experience limits our ability to provide concrete guidance on this topic.  Vendors are encouraged to ask questions that put forward alternate BRD business processes based on TM1 best practices that have high value at a lower cost.  SPU will do its best to provide answers that guide all Vendors when preparing their proposals.  Without such guidance, Vendors should assume that they must implement all requirements and business processes as laid out in the BRD and RFP.  

	

	6
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	Are there one or many sources for data for the budgeting system?


	Most financial data will come from our financial datamart.  All employee related data will come from our Human Resources system via an intermediate set of Oracle tables.  All initial labor allocations and assignments (person hours against financial activities) will come from our Computer Associates project management system.


	

	7
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	Is data cleansing part of the scope of work of the RFP?


	SPU will generally be responsible for the quality of all source data transferred into TM1.  Vendors would be responsible for any new data that does not currently exist in any source system and that would be maintained in the TM1 budgeting system.  

	

	8
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	What’s the change control process SPU 
plans to use once a contract is awarded and negotiated? 


	Once the contract is awarded, SPU is allowed to issue additional Work Orders and/or amend Work Orders.

	Attachment #2 “Contract Terms & Conditions” the following contract language titled “Expansion” and “Work Order Process” is herby added.

             
[image: image2.emf]Expansion_Work  Order.doc




	9
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	In reference to the requirement (?) to not replicate actuals data within the budgeting system, is this also true for planning and analysis functions?


	If summaries of the detailed transaction level data in our financial datamart are required, that is fine.  We are simply trying to state that we don’t want to create two systems that maintain “actuals”.


	

	10
	1/04/12
	1/11/12
	On the hardware specification for the typical server hardware SPU purchases, the amount of RAM is not listed.


	SPU generally provisions servers to the typical specification and then allocates more RAM and/or CPU resources to servers as those needs are known – up to the limits of the hardware and the licenses SPU owns.  SPU has matched the typical hardware specification to the PVUs we purchased (i.e. four cores on this hardware equates to 280 PVUs).  


	

	11
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	Is SPU using IBM hardware?


	No.  SPU runs its databases on Unix hardware with Sun Solaris and other servers on Windows Server as outlined in the RFP.


	

	12
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	Do you want a fixed or hourly bid?
	Fixed bid.

	

	13
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	Is there an opportunity to go through some sort of requirements refinement process after a vendor is selected but before the contract is awarded?


	A statement of work will be developed after the selection of the Apparent Successful Vendor and before the contract is awarded. During this development, additional refinement between what SPU requires for a budgeting system (BRD) can be resolved with the nativeTM1 functionality or through discoveries when work begins.
	

	14
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	What is SPU’s in-house expertise with Cognos Business Intelligence system and TM1.


	SPU currently has one system administrator who spends ~20% of his time on Cognos related administration.  Four developers have been through formal Cognos training (reporting and framework manager) but only two developers have implemented Cognos reports or metadata.  Approximately twelve business users have been through formal Cognos training business author training.  SPU is just now deploying Cognos to a large group of 400 users.  SPU staff has virtually no experience with TM1 beyond seeing demonstrations.

	

	15
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	In the list of SPU resources on page 16 of the RFP there is no TM1 resource listed.


	That was an oversight.  SPU will add a full time TM1 resource to perform knowledge transfer.

	Section 6.12 “Labor Resources”,
Add: Full Time TMI

	16
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	During post implementation, what are SPU’s expectations about support required from the Vendor?

	SPU plans to take over all support responsibilities at some point post implementation.  We expect to gradually reduce our reliance on Vendor support but we expect that to occur over a period of time (probably a year or more).  We are also looking for some level of Vendor support driven more from SPU staff availability/workload point of view and have written the RFP to permit this activity.  


	

	17
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	Will vendor interviews be done in person?


	Yes, vendor interviews will be conducted at Seattle Municipal Tower in Seattle, WA

	

	18
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	What are SPUs expectations about classroom training for the training portion of the RFP?


	In general, SPU prefers classroom training for the administrators and power users.  For the contributors or data entry reports only users some combination of in person presentation (20-30 people at a time) and video/on-line would be sufficient.  SPU has a twelve person training room with an overhead for the instructor which will be made available for the in-person classroom training.

	

	19
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	What is SPUs expectation around doing the work on-site?


	We intentionally left this open in the management response, but we do expect some of the work to be done on-site.  We are looking to proposers to propose something that makes sense, is cost effective and has proven successful with previous clients. 

	

	20
	1/04/12
	1/13/12
	What is SPUs expectation with respect to project management responsibilities?


	The Vendors project manager will generally be responsible for the day to day oversight of their staff and for the development and implementation of the system to meet negotiated milestones.  The SPU project manager will be responsible for coordinating work between SPU and the Vendor, resolving and managing business process changes/issues, and managing the overall scope of the project.

	

	21
	1/13/12
	1/13/12
	Can you elaborate on the expected size of the model? Specifically, how many elements/members will be in the following dimensions:

  - Org

  - Activity

  - GL Account

  - DOF Project

  - Budget Program & Sub Program

  - Fund

  - Activity Sub Fund Split

  - Employees 

	For each dimension the # Attributes refers to the number of fields associated with a member of that type.  For example, ORG would have ID, Long Name, Short Name, and Summit Code fields.  For each dimension, the # Active Members refers to the total number of “rows” which are in use today of the dimension type listed whereas Total Members refers to the total historical number of members from 1997 to present.  
Dimension
# Attributes
# Active 
Members
Total Members
Org
10
163
484
Activity
20
2,184
11,903
GL Account
12
2,338
2,338
DOF Project
10
1,776
5,265
Budget Program 
& Sub Program
5
96
96
Fund
4
4
5
Employees 
25
1,400
2,015
Activity Sub Fund Split
10
6,403
23,141
SPU has three core funds – drinking water, solid waste and drainage and wastewater.  It also has a “clearing fund” and a historical “engineering” fund (accounting for the total 5).  

The activity sub fund split is really the intersection of the Activity and Fund Dimensions (e.g. 3 funds multiplied by 2,184 activities = 6,552).  Each activity can be paid for by one or more of the three primary funds and requires the percent split. The difference between 6,403 and 6,552 counts is because Activity’s may be set up in the source system but they never become “real” so their sub fund splits are never defined/created.  


	

	22
	1/13/12
	1/13/12
	Can you confirm that all "what-if" scenarios will require all levels of the budget (including, most importantly, the Detailed Budgeting)?


	We believe that a “What-If” scenario will require all levels of the budget including Detail Budgeting.   As SPU requires the capability to promote a “What-If” to become the ‘budget of record’, we believe that a “What-If” budget must include Detail Budgeting.  If there is an alternate approach provided by TM1 out-of-the box we would want to understand that option during the design phase.
	

	23
	
	
	
	
	

	24
	
	
	
	
	

	25
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Seattle Public Utilities: JUST THE FACTS
Approximately $800 million annual budget - 1,450 employees
$7.5 billion in infrastructure assets (replacement cost based on a 2003 inventory, including adjustment for inflation)
Four major business lines

DRINKING WATER
Facts and Figures

e 1.3 million people live in areas receiving SPU water
e 118 million gallons used per day on average (2010)
e 54 mgd (46%) sold to retail customers (2010)
e 56 mgd (47%) sold to wholesale customers (2010)
e 8 mgd (7%) non-revenue water (2010)
e 1,900 miles of pipeline
e 104,000 acres in 2 watersheds, 3 wells

Business Structure

e Water sold to about 184,000 retail accounts in Seattle
and adjacent areas north and south of city.

e Water sold to Cascade Water Alliance and 20 other
wholesale customers

Revenue
e Total 2010 revenue: $195.2 mil
Direct service revenue: $136.4 mil
Wholesale revenue: $40.0 mil
Other revenue: $13.7 mil

Water In Seattle
From:
e Cedar River (62% of water supplied in 2010)
e South Fork Tolt River (38% of water supplied in 2010)
e Seattle wells (available for emergencies and peak use)
To:
¢ Retail to Seattle city households and businesses
e Wholesale to suburban cities and water districts
Major Capital Projects
e Water CIP: $65 mil (2010 expenditure)
e Reservoir Covering Program (multi-year program)
e New Sockeye Hatchery (2011)
¢ $340 million in Capital Projects planned (2012-16)

Major Regulators
e Washington State Department of Health (WDOH)
e Washington State Department of Ecology
e State and Federal Fish and Wildlife Agencies
History
e 1889 Seattle Water Department formed
e 1901 Seattle began supplying water from Cedar River

e 1964 Seattle began supplying water from South Fork
Tolt River

Other Interesting Facts

e SPU owns almost all 91,339 acres of the Cedar River
Watershed and 70% of the 12,500 acre Tolt Watershed
(US Forest Service owns the other 30%)

e No agricultural, industrial or recreational activities are
allowed in or around watersheds

e Treatment steps: filtration at Tolt Plant, ultraviolet light at
Cedar plant. Screening, ozonation, corrosion control,
fluoridation, chlorination at both plants

e SPU has a large state certified Water Quality Laboratory
e Number of meters:

162,000 single family (includes duplexes)

22,000 multi-family/commercial/government

124 wholesale

SOLID WASTE

Facts and Figures
e 142,180 commercial garbage tons disposed (2010)
e 114,135 residential garbage tons disposed (2010)
e 79,292 self haul garbage tons disposed (2010)
e 53.7% citywide recycling rate (2010)
e 5,352 residential dumpster accounts (2010)
e 153,920 residential variable can accounts (2010)
e 8,259 commercial accounts (2010)

Business Structure
e Contracts with two private haulers for residential

garbage, recycling and organics collection

e Contracts with two private haulers for commercial
garbage collection began April 1, 2001
Revenue

e Total 2010 revenue: $150.9 mil

Solid Waste In Seattle
From:

e Households and Businesses via (2) City and (2)
Private Transfer Stations
To:

e Landfill in Arlington, Oregon via rail 300 miles away

e Various local and international recycling markets

e Cedar Grove for composting yard and food waste
Major Capital Projects

e Solid Waste CIP: $23.6 mil (2010 expenditure)

¢ Construction of new South Transfer Station
underway, site cleanup completed.

e Community outreach and design concept review for

North Transfer Station rebuild

Major Regulators
e Washington State Department of Ecology
¢ Oregon State Department of Environmental Quality
¢ Public Health Seattle and King County
History

e Solid Waste Fund established in 1961

e The Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste Utilities
merged to form Seattle Public Utilities in 1997.

Other Interesting Facts

¢ Residential customers receive weekly garbage and
organics and bi-weekly recycling collection on the
same day of the week

e Garbage and Yard/Food Waste rates vary according
to size of container

¢ Residential food waste collected with yard waste
(begun 2005)

¢ Tip fee for MSW at City transfer stations: $145/ton
(2010)

e 70.3% recycling rate for single family sector (2010)

e 285,459 vehicle trips handled by City transfer stations
in 2010

e Commercial food waste collection program begun
June 2005

¢ Recycle mandate effective January 2005





WASTEWATER
Facts and Figures

448 miles of sanitary sewers

968 miles of combined sewers

68 Pump Stations

5.5 miles of wastewater force mains

90 City-owned and permitted Combined Sewer
Overflow points

38 Combined Sewer Overflow control detention
tanks/pipes
Business Structure

Long-term contract with regional (King County)
authority for treatment

City collection system discharges to King County
interceptors

Service area extends outside the City and overlaps
with Southwest Suburban Sewer Agency

Sold sanitary sewer north of 145th Street
October 2001

All laterals to mainlines are private
Revenue/Rates

Wastewater Service Revenue: $186.7 mil (2010)
Charges based on water usage

Charges appear on monthly/bi-monthly combined utility
bills
Wastewater In Seattle

From: Households and businesses

To: King County Sewage Treatment Plant

Major Capital Projects
Wastewater CIP: $29.8 mil (2010 expenditure)
Ballard Roadside Rain Gardens Projects
Sewer pipe and pump station rehabilitation
CSO facility retrofit and Windermere CSO
Genesee and Henderson CSO Projects
Long Term Control Plan

Major Regulators
Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE)
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

History
Sewer Utility created in 1955

Other Interesting Facts

1 of 34 agencies using King County Regional
Treatment Plant

Small portion of Seattle’s wastewater is treated by
Southwest Suburban Sewer District

Seattle

@) Public

Utilities

DRAINAGE

Facts and Figures
e 460 miles of storm drains / 170 storm drain outfalls
e 40,000 catch basins
e 38 miles of creeks within city limits
e 70 miles of ditches / 18,000 feet of natural systems
e 151 miles of culverts
e 12 detention/treatment ponds
e 300 underground detention facilities
e 13 underground treatment facilities

Business Structure

e Regular inspections of privately owned storm water
drainage systems and businesses which undertake
high-risk pollution generating activities

e (City drainage system conveys stormwater to King
County interceptors in combined areas, and to
receiving waters in other areas.

¢ Extensive outreach and education programs to
schools, communities, and businesses

e Service area within Seattle City limits only
Revenue/Rates

¢ Drainage Service Revenue: $58.3 mil (2010)

¢ Rates based on lot size and % of impervious surface

e Charges appear as a Surface Water Management
fee on King County property tax statements.
Drainage In Seattle

¢ From: Storm water runoff from impervious and
pervious surfaces

e To: Creeks, lakes, Duwamish River, Puget Sound &
King County Wastewater Treatment Plant

Major Capital Projects
e Drainage CIP: $28.7 mil (2010 expenditure)

e South Park Pump Station and Water Quality
Treatment Facility

e Natural Drainage Systems

¢ Regional Water Quality Treatment Facility
e Creek Restoration and Monitoring

e Neighborhood Drainage Improvements

e | andslide Mitigation Projects
Major Regulators

e U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

¢ National Marine Fisheries Service

e U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

e Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife
e Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE)

History
¢ Created in 1987 by expanding the Sewer Utility

Other Interesting Facts
e Seattle has more than 40 mapped creeks
e 75% of Seattle’s 36 in. of annual rain falls Oct — Mar

¢ Pioneered the Natural Drainage Systems approach
to sustainable drainage infrastructure, winning the
2004 “Innovations in American Government Award”
from Harvard’s Kennedy School of Government

Seattle Municipal Tower
700 5™ Avenue, Suite 4900
P O Box 34018

Seattle, WA 98124-4018
http://www.seattle.gov/util

“Just the Facts” compiled by Economic Services, September 2011 206-684-4143
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Expansion Clause


This contract may be expanded as mutually agreed, if such expansion is approved in writing by the Buyer from the City Purchasing Office of the Department of Finance & Administration, City of Seattle.  No other City employee is authorized to make such written notices.  The Buyer will ensure the expansion meets the following criteria collectively:  (a)  it could not be separately bid, (b) the change is for a reasonable purpose, (c) the change was not reasonably known to either the City or vendors at time of bid or else was mentioned as a possibility in the bid (such as a change in environmental regulation or other law); (d) the change is not significant enough to be reasonably regarded as an independent body of work; (e) the change could not have attracted a different field of competition, and (f) the change does not vary the essential identity or main purpose of the contract.  The Buyer shall make this determination, and may make exceptions for immaterial changes, emergency or sole source conditions, or for other situations as required in the opinion of the Buyer.  Certain Work Orders or changes are not considered an expansion of scope, including an increase in quantities ordered, the exercise of options and alternates in the bid, change in design and specifications that does not expand the work beyond the limits provided for above, or ordering of work originally identified within the originating solicitation. If such changes are approved, changes are conducted as a written order issued by the City Purchasing Buyer in writing to the Vendor.


Work Order Process


The Vendor shall furnish all systems pursuant to work orders issued under this Contract. Each work order shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Contract, and incorporated into this Contract by this reference. The Vendor shall furnish all the goods and services (“deliverables”) specified in the Work Order in an aggregate, single, complete transaction and not as separate items.  For each work order under this Contract, Vendor shall commence work upon issuance of a notice to proceed by the City. Work orders under this Contract may be generated by the City under the following conditions:

(1) The Work Order is within the scope of the original solicitation and contract or is within the allowed conditions for expansions under Section__(Expansion Clause) above;


(2) A post-warranty annual maintenance agreement is accepted by the City;


(3) The City issues a request to upgrade equipment, software, or to change quantities of any deliverable;


(4) The City orders additional custom features or interfaces for the Systems prior to or after the acceptance period.


For any subsequent work order(s) requested by either party, the Vendor shall submit a detailed proposal for the change. The Vendor shall analyze, record, estimate and submit to the City, for its approval, the proposed scope for the changed or new work, a work schedule, and a rate or price adjustment for completion of the work to be changed or added.  Once this proposal is received and approved by the City, a new work order will be issued for the changed or additional work. Upon the City’s written approval and notice to proceed, the Vendor shall implement the change or additional work and invoice for the changed or additional work consistent with the City’s approval notice and the terms and conditions of this Contract. 


The City may, at its option, add, delete or modify any part of any work order by giving Vendor notice of such change within the time period specified in the applicable work order.  Within seven (7) days after the date of such notice, the Vendor shall deliver to the City an amended work order reflecting the change in description, schedule and/or dollar amount due using the unit prices as proposed for the specific work order in Vendor’s Proposal.

The Vendor shall not proceed unless authorized by a mutually agreed upon amendment.  Such extra work shall be in compliance with Section 4 (Expansion Clause) and shall be authorized in writing only by the City Purchasing Buyer, Department of Executive Administration.  Any costs incurred due to the performance of extra work will not be reimbursed until or unless an amendment is agreed upon.

The City does not guarantee utilization of goods and services provided for in this Contract for which the City has not issued a work order(s).  The City may itself provide these goods or services or may award contracts to other Vendors for similar goods and services.  In such instances, the Vendor shall not be responsible for the operation, performance or maintenance for equipment so obtained.


